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Printed Naing’of Alithfrized Representative | Kelvin L. Baker, Sr., City Manager
Date YUYV M — 01/30/2013
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SECTION 2: APPLICANT, EXISTING SERVICES, AND SERVICE AREA

1)} Provide a brief description of the applicant and its background with implementing this type of
project.

The City of Opa-locka is an urban community occupying 4.2 square miles in the North-Western area
of Miami Dade County. The boundaries are as follows: on the North - NW 151st Steet, on the South -
NW 125 Street, on the East - NW 17t Avenue and on the West - NW 45t Avenue.

The City currenly operates the "Seniors on the Move" program which utilizes a specialized ADA Van
with a designated driver and adminstrator. The City's Park and Recreation Department operates two
shuttle vans for youth and after-school programs plus 3 - 50 passenger school buses for foothall
season. All these vehicles are City owned and a part of a larger fleet (200 vehicles and heavy
machinery) repaired by the vehicle maintenance division of the Public Works Department. Despite
the fine expertise with small transportation programs and vehicles, this project was implemented,
and will continue, as a turnkey operation with oversight by city staff. Since its implementation in
January 2011, appropriate staff resources have been allocated and will continue to be made
available to monitor and manae the service and make necessary modifications in order to achieve
the project goals and objectives.

2) Provide a brief description of the applicant’s existing services.

The Opa-tocka Express shuttle service operates as a wave and ride on two routes. The North shuttle
services the Magnolia North Community, the Garden Apartments, Sherbondy Park, the Municipal
Complex, the Post Office, Tri-rail station and Walgreen’'s on NW 160th Street and 27th Avenue. The
South shuttle, which IS operated by South Florida Regional Transportation Authority (SFRTA),
services Segal and Ingram Parks, Dr. Robert B. Ingram and Nathan B. Young Elementary Schools, the
Nile Gardens Community, Miami-Dade North College and the Senior Citizens homes. The Shuttle
services are free to the community (residents and visitors). The bus shuttles currently operate five
days a week, from 6 am to 7 pm for total of 65 hours per week with approximately 55,000 riderships
per year. Effective February 2013, Shuttle services will be expanded to include weekend (Saturday)
services from 10 am to 7 pm. Both routes link with the Tri-Rail and passengers may also connect to
existing Miami-Dade County bus stops.

3) Provide a brief description of the existing service area (provide demographic, economic, and
geographic information).

The 2010 Census reported the City's population at 15,219 with 10.2 percent of Opa-locka workers
using public transportation when commuting to work, almost twice that of the County's average of
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5.2 percent. Fifty percent (50%) of the households in the city do not own a private vehicle and thirty
five percent (35%) live below the povenrty line.

SECTION 3: PROJECT INFORMATION

4) Project Title: City of Opa-locka Bus Shuttle

5) Specify the type of project.
[X] Continuation of an Existing JARC/NF Project
[] Expansion of an Existing Project not previously funded through JARC/NF
[] Existing fixed route service not previously funded through JARC

] New Project

6) Provide a description of the project. For projects seeking operating assistance, provide details of
proposed routes, schedules, and trip coordination strategies. For capital projects, explain the
quantity and type of assets to be procured, use, useful life, and whether assets are expansion or
replacement assets. If the project has multiple elements (i.e., operating, mobility management,
capital}, please include a description of how these elements relate to each other.

This project request is for the continuation of an existing shuttle service currently funded by
JARC. The City conducted a study with the assistance of Miami-Dade County Metropolitan
Planning Organization (MPO) and identified two optimal routes (North and South routes).
The study incorporated City residents concens in the decision making process.

The project will continue existing bus services which operates on weekdays between hours of
6 am and 7 pm and will expand in February 2013 to include Saturday services between the
hours of 10 am and 7 pm. This application seek funding for the continuation and expansion
of the north route service of this project to include connecting services to surrounding Cities
such as Hialeah and Miami Lakes, and St. Thomas University. The City will continue talks
with Hialeah and Miami Lakes to determine how to best link up with their respective shuttle
services. The City will continue to work with the South Florida Regional Transportation
Authority (SFRTA) with the continuation of the South route.

The project will continue to address the unmet transportation needs of low income residents,
welfare recipients, students, and the elderly who are without personal transportation. The
2000 Census report that 10.2 percent of Opa-locka workers rely on public transportation
when commuting to work. The continuation of these two route in the City will ensure that the
underserved population of the City will be able to connect to places of employment, schools
and businesses.
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movility; (2) Decrease the number of car users; (3) Increase the number of daily bus and tri-
rail users; (4) Provide an alternate means of transportation for employees to and from work in
Opa-locka such as local businesses and the Opa-locka Airport; and (5) Transit students to
Miami Dade College - North Campus and St. Thomas University.

10) Describe the geographic boundaries of the project. Applicants must attach a map (8.5 x 11)
depicting the project boundaries.

The North Route service area is bordered to the North by NW 160th Street along NW 27th
Avenue, 10 the East at Magnolia North Community at Johnson Street and Ali-Baba Avenue, to the
West at Dunan Ave and South at NW 135th Street. The North shuttle will service Magnolia North
Community, the Garden Apartments, Sherbondy Park, the Municipal Complex, the Post Office,
the Tri-Rail station, the Walgreens on NW 160t Street and 27t Avenue and will expand to
include St. Thomas University. The South shuttle will service Segal and Ingram parks, Dr. Robert
B. Ingram and Nathan B. Young Elementary Schools, the Nile Gardens Community, Miami-Dade
North College and the Senior Citizenns homes. The Shuttle service is free to residents and
visitors in the community and operate from 6 am to 7 pm on weekdays and from 10 am to 7 pm
on Saturdays (see attached map and schedule).

11) Estimate the number of low-income population (JARC} and individuals with disabilities (NF) that
will be served by the project. Provide an explanation as to how the estimate was determined.

An analysis of the transit support parameters is attached and shows the characteristics of the
demographic. The percentage of the population, low income residents and employments served
as shown in the map. Opa-locka has a high percentage {35%) of youth under 18 when compared
to Miami Dade County (25%) and the State of Florida (23%). There is also a comparatively high
percentage of population using public transportation for commute to work (10%), when
compared to Miami Dade County (5%) and the State (2%). The number of vehicles per
household is also comparatively low to the County and State. This further emphasizes the need
for alternative transportation. In using the percentage outlined above for Opa-locka, the number
of low-income population and individuals with disabilities that will be served by this project is
approximately 10,257.

SECTION 4: COORDINATION

12) Explain how your organization coordinated with existing public transportation providers to
develop the project. identify other transportation providers that currently operate similar
services to the target population within the project area. How do you plan to prevent the
duplication of services? Discuss anticipated formal agreements, arrangements to coordinate
services, joint funding initiatives, the pooling of resources and any other coordination efforts
planned or already initiated.

viii
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The project will support the existing Miami Dade Transit (MDT) routes by filling the service gaps
and connecting pockets of populations to MDT and/or Tri-Rail for their ultimate destinations.
The bus shuttle schedule was plan based on the Tri-raill 's schedule to provide effective
connection between shuttle buses and tri-rail. Both entities were significantly involved in the
study phase of the project with MDT participating as part of the steering committee. The City
currently has a contract with SFRTA providing 25% matching funds to support the South route.
SFRTA will continue to operate the south route and maintain continuous coordination with the
north route. The City contracted with Limousines of South Florida, Inc to provide the proper
transportation that meet the needs of all users and operating services.

The City is also in talks with the City of Hialeah and Miami Lakes to establish connections with
their existing shuttle services. This collaboration would provide, for example, access to Miami
Dade metro station located in Hialeah.

13) Explain how your organization coordinated with human service transportation providers and/or
other private non-profit/for-profit operators to develop the project. Identify other human service
transportation providers and/or other private non-profit/for-profit operators that currently
operate similar services to the target population within the project area. How to you plan to
prevent the duplication of services? Discuss anticipated formal agreements, arrangements to
coordinate services, joint funding initiatives, the pooling of resources and any other
coordination efforts planned or already initiated.

This project was implemented to fill in the service gaps and connect pockets of the populations
to MDT, Tri-rail, area college and services not available in the community. Because the project
target areas lacking in transportation services, this curtail any potential duplication of service.
The City of Hialeah and Miami Lakes have initiate conversation with the City about linking our
shuttle service with their existing services. The City plan to continue these talks with the hope
of coordinating sevices.

SECTION 5: IMPLEMENTATION AND SCALABILITY

14) Please provide the number of months needed upon receipt of award to begin providing
services to the project’s target population. Identify the activities that have been completed
thus far to develop the project. Provide a schedule for project implementation and complete
the Milestone Information Form provided in Exhibit H. If your service is dependent upon the
purchase of vehicles, use the vehicle anticipated delivery date as your starting point to
determine the number of months needed to begin initiation of service.

This is an ongoing project and therefore, the City will not require any time upon award to begin
providing services. To date the project has contracted with Limousines of South Florida, inc to
provide transportation and operationg services.
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15) Provide evidence of financial capability to implement the project. Please note that no advance
payments will be made by SFRTA to applicants under any circumstances.

See attached budgeted item from the City's FY 2013 Budget.

16) Could the project be implemented on a more limited scope with less funding?

[] Yes
4 No

If YES, please describe in detail how your project could be scaled down with less funding. Please
provide specific funding scenarios.

SECTION 6: PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND REPORTING

17) How will the project be monitored and evaluated on an ongoing hasis? What criteria will be
used to establish the success of the project?

Similar to existing in-house transportation The project will be monitored by City staff and the
performance will be measured based on the number of ridership resulting from the service
extension. To assess the success of the project, the bus operator will collect passenger boarding
and alighting data and City staff will continue unannounced inspection and monitoring of bus
operations. The data collected will be used to determine (1) daily and monthly ridership; (2)
riders per revenue hour; (3} cost per rider; (4) cost per mileage; and (5) number of transfer to
MDT and Tri-Rail.

Please note that the FTA requires that the following measures be reported on by program:

JARC

e Actual or estimated number of jobs that can be accessed as a resuit of geographic or temporal coverage of
JARC projects implemented in the current reporting year.

* Actual or estimated number of rides (as measured by one-way trips) provided as a result of the JARC profects
implemented in the current reporting year.

New Freedom
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» Services provided that impact availability of transportation services for individuals with disabilities as a result
of the New Freedom projects implemented in the current reporting year. Examples include geographic
coverage, service quality and/or service times.

» Additions or changes to environmental infrastructure (e.g., transportation facilities, sidewalks, etc), technology,
vehicles that impact availability of transportation services as a result of the New Freedom projects
implemented in the current reporting year.

« Actual or estimated number of rides (as measured by one-way trips) provided for individuals with disabilities as
a resuit of New Freedom projects implemented in the current reporting year.

18) Does your organization have experience in administering federat grants? Your response should
include the following:
¢ Details of federally funded grants that your agency has managed.
» Procedures your organization has developed for implementing a Civil Rights Program.

Over the years, the City has been the receipent of grant awards from agencies such as
Department of Enviornmental Protection (DEP), Department of Justice (DOJ), Florida
Department of Transportation (FDOT), Housing and Urban Development (HUD), many pass-
through grants from local agencies, such as Miami Dade County, and South Florida Regional
Transportation Agency (SFRTA). City staff have over seen numerous project funded, in whole or
part, by federal funds. The City is an equal opportunity employer and doesnot discrimination
based on race, religion, gender, age, national origin, disability, veteran status or any other
status or condition protected by applicable federal and state laws, except where a bona fide
occupational qualification applies.

19) Describe your agency's ability to manage the project, inciuding its financial and human
resources, and its Institutlonal capacity.

The project will be monitored by the Project Manager/City Engineer. The Project Manager is
located in the Public Works Department. All invoices are approved by the project manager who
prepare a Check Request with the supporting documentations (resolution, contracts, release of
liens, etc) and then forward the request to Finance Department/Accounts Payable. The
request is then approved by the Finance Director or the Assistant Finance Director. The
payment request is then sent to the City Manager for final approval. The approved document
is then returned to Accounts Payment where the check is process.

20) Describe your agency's financial management system, including accounting software and
accounting system,

The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The City's Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report, the accounting systems, and classification of accounts conform to the
standards of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which is the accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. In accordance with generally accepted principles, the City's accounting system is

Xi
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current bus services. The City received a request from St. Thomas University to be added one
of the City's route. This would allow for students living in the City to easily connect to the
University. The request is included in the package.

24) Explain how the project you are seeking funding for differs from other services in the area with
respect 1o service coverage area, hours of service, trip purpose, or level of service.

The expansion would include stops at St. Thomas University. The ability to connect with the
City of Hialeah would allow the City to provide connection the Miami Dade County Metro Rail
system and the connection to Miami Lakes would give access to human and other services not
readily available in the City.

25) Explain what connections the project provides to key destinations and activity centers,
particularly those destinations that present opportunities for employment assistance or
employment. Be as specific as possible in identifying significant destinations.

The ability to connect to Miami Dade County Metro Rail would provide access to transportation
that would allow riders to get to locations providing employment assistance, employment, and
education.

26) Explain how this project provides access to other transportation services that go beyond the
project's proposed geographic boundary.

The project support existing Miami Dade Transit (MDT) routes by filling services gaps and
connecting the population to MDT and Tri-rail for their ultimate destinations. To ensure
effective connection between the shuttle buses and tri+ail, the shuttle buses schedule is
aligned with that of the Tri-rail service schedule.

xiii
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27) Provide the projected ridership in the tahle below.

PROJECTED RIDERSHIP (12-month period)

Explain how the ridership was determined.

. Current Ridership (one-way Projected Ridership (one-way
Program Target Population trips) trips)
JARC Low Income/Welfare 30000 45000
New - - L
Freedom Individuals with Disabilities
Other
TOTAL 30000 45000

The ridership was determined based on the data gathered from the current services provided.
The cost is estimated by current service hours multipy by operating cost with a 13 hours per
weekday and 7 hours Saturday service.

28) Summarize operating funding request in the table below.

nearest dollar.

Piease round all numbers to the

OPERATING FUNDING REQUEST (50%/50% Match Required)

12-month period iﬁcﬁggrg) perlod (maximum
Tota! Operating Cost (all eligible $200000 $400000
operating costs)
Less Project Revenues (Fare box) $( ) $( )
Net Project Cost $ $
Local Share Requirement
(50% of Net Project Cost) $100000 $200000
Request for Operating Funding $100000 $200000

If the funding request is for any other duration, clearly state the project duration,

Provide supplementary budget sheets to illustrate how the total operating cost was derived. If
funding is sought for multiple routes, cost estimates must be provided for individual routes.
Failure to provide necessary details to justify the project cost may result in rejection of the
application.

If the funding request is for expanding an existing service that currently does not receive
JARC/NF funding; only the expansion portion of the project is eligible for JARC/NF funding
consideration,

This is not applicable. The City received JARC funding for this project.

Xiv
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29) Based on the projected ridership and operating cost, estimate the cost per one-way trip.

The estimated cost per one-way trip is $4.50 per rider.
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The City intend to continue to apply for other source of grant support for this project. In
addition, a minimum fare is a likely way of continued funding. The City is also considering
revenue from local business advertisement.

Xviii
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SECTION 10: LETTERS OF SUPPORT

Letters of Support
All letters of support must be submitted with the application. Letters should indicate the nature of

support (financial, participation, coordination, etc.).

Indicate if letters of support are included. [ Yes [] Ne

Xix












UNIVERSIT

A 'ST.THOMAS
‘ BISCAYNE COLLEGE SOCIAL SCIENCES & COUNSELING

A Leader Is an Individual with a Dream and the Will to Make [t Real

January 29, 2013

Mr. Owen Carney
Project Coordinator
City of Opa-Locka

Dear Mr. Carney:

On behalf of the students, staff and faculty at St. Thomas University, we would like to request a shuttie

bus from the Opa-Locka Tri-Rail station to St. Thomas University. Over the past several years, as a staff
member at 5t. Thomas, | have heard the students inquire why we could not have a shuttle bus from Tri-
Raii to the university. It was suggested that Florida Memorial could also have this service.

Having seen and used a shuttle service from Tri-Rail to Nova Southeastern University, | know first-hand
that this is a reliable tool. The use of a shuttle service would also be helpful with our enroliment as
students would be aware that there is a more reliabie source of transportation to and fram Tri-Rail.

About two years ago, we inquired about the use of a shuttle service with no success, We hope this time
that our request would once again be considered.

Sincerely,

LACup
Grdce Bernard
Administrative Assistant

St. Thomas University
305-628-6568

16401 NW 37th Avenue » Miami Gardens, FL 33054 « Phone: (305) 474-6974 » Eax: (305) 628-6749
www.shir.edu
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APPLICANT SIGNATURE

| certify, to the best of my knowledge, that the information in this application is true and accurate
and that this organization has the necessary fiscal, data coliection, and managerial capability to
implement and manage the projects associated with this application.

Applicant Agency City of Opa-locka

Project Title City of Opa-locka Bus Shuttle

Name of Signatory Kelvin L. Baker, Sr.

itle of SWCM Manager
y ol[3l]20.3
Date

Atﬁho}i?ed Signature

Xvii
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OPA-LOCKA EXPRESS SOUTH LINK SHUTTLE BUS SCHEDULE
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Sponsored by: City Manager

Resolution No. 12-8510

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE
CITY MANAGER TO APPLY FOR FY2012 5316 JOB ACCESS
REVERSE COMMUTE (JARC), AND 5317 NEW FREEDOM
FUNDING (NF), AND FURTHER TO ENTER INTO AN
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH SOUTH FLORIDA
REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY (SFRTA) FOR
EXTENDING AND ENHANCING THE OPERATION OF THE
CITY’S BUS SHUTTLE SERVICE, IN AN AMOUNT UP TO
THREE HUNDRED THOUSAND ($300,000.00) DOLLARS,
WITH THE CITY PROVIDING MATCH FUNDS, PAYABLE
FROM ACCOUNT #44-541810; PROVIDING FOR
INCORPORATION OF RECITALS; PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City was awarded FY 2010/2011 Job Access and Reverse Commute
(“JARC”) and SFRTA, grant funds; and

WHEREAS, the City is now seeking additional funds, which will be used to fund operating
costs, including weekend services, and will also be used to fund operating costs for potential inne-
city connectivity; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Opa-locka desires to expand the service
and sceure funding beyond the contract period of January 2013; and

WHEREAS, the City seeks to acquire $300,000 in funding for 'Y 2012, Section 5316 Job
Access and Reverse Commute (JARC), and Section 5317 New Freedom (NF), and further, to enter
into an Interlocal agreement with SFRTA for extending and enhancing the operation of the City’s

shuttle bus service.



Resolution No. 12-8510

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT DULY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF
THE CITY OF OPA-LOCKA:

Section 1. The recitals to the preamble herein are incorporated by reference.

Section 2.  The City Commission of the City of Opa-locka hereby authorizes and directs
the City Manager to apply for FY2012 5316 Job Access Reverse Commute (JARC) and 5317 New
Freedom Funding (NF), and to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with South Florida Regional
Transit Authority (SFRTA), for extending and enhancing the operation of the city’s bus shuttle, in
an amount up to $300,000.00, with the City providing matching funds, payable from the Miami-
Dade People’s Transportation Program (PTP), Account #44-541810.

Section3.  This resolution shall take effect inmediately upon adoption.

L

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12" day of December, 2012,

MYRA TAYLOR
MAYOR

]test to:
J

a Flores
y Clerk




Resolution No. 12-8510

Moved by: COMMISSIONER HOLMES
Seconded by: VICE MAYOR KELLEY
Commission Vote: 5-0

Commissioner Holmes: YES
Commissioner Johnson: YES
Commisstoner Santiago: YES
Vice-Mayor Kelley: YES
Mayor Taylor: YES
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May 25, 2012

To the Citizens, the Honorable Mayor, City Commissioners
and City Manager of the City of Opa-locka:

It is my pleasure to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the City of Opa-locka,
Florida, for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, pursuant to Section 218.39 of the Florida Statutes,
Chapter 10.550 of the Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida and the City Charter. The financial
statements included in this report conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). This report is published
to fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in
this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for this purpose.
Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material
misstatements.

The financial statements have been audited by Harvey, Covington & Thomas, LLC, a firm of licensed
certified public accountants. The independent auditors have issued an unqualified opinion on the City’s
financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2011. The independent auditors’ report is located at the
front of the financial section of this report.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors’ report and
provides narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A complement
this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

Profile of the Government

The City of Opa-locka was incorporated in 1926 and operates under a Commission/City Manager form of
government. The City Commission is comprised of the Mayor and four Commissioners, who are responsible
for enacting ordinances, resolutions, and regulations governing the City; and appointing the members of
various advisory boards. Additionally, the City Commission appoints the City Manager, the City Attorney
and the City Clerk. As Chief Administrative Officer, the City Manager is responsible for the enforcement of
laws and ordinances, and the appointment and supervision of the City’s department heads.

The City provides a full range of services, inctuding police, construction and maintenance of highways and
streets and other infrastructure, recreational and cultural activities, water and wastewater, sanitation, planning

and zoning, and general administrative services.

For additional information concerning our City, please visit our website at www.opalockafl.gov.
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The financial reporting entity, under which the financial staternents are prepared, includes all the activities
and functions for which the City is financially accountable.

The City is required to prepare, approve, adopt and execute an annual budget. This annual budget serves
as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control, Budgetary control is maintained at the
departmental and fund level, with the finance department providing support to departments in the
administration of their budgets. In accordance with the city’s budget transfer policy, the city manager is
authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within any fund or function; however, any supplementai
appropriations or revisions that amend the total adopted budget must be approved by the City
Cominission. Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this report for all of the City’s funds that
have an appropriated annual budget.

LOCAL ECONOMY

The City of Opa-locka comprises approximately 4.2 square miles, has a population of approximately
16,000 and is located in the northern portion of Miami-Dade County. The City is a mix of residential,
commercial and industrial zones with the Opa-locka airport, which is owned and operated by Miami-
Dade County, being its best known landmark. The City of Opa-locka community is served by two
elementary schools.

This year has been very challenging with a further decline in taxable property values and the
implementation of legislative measures that have placed limits on how local governments can levy ad
valorem taxes today and into the future.

The economic decline, which began in fiscal year 2007, continued to negatively impact the City during
fiscal year 2011. Revenue sources that are directly related to consumers spending declined in the past
four years. Home prices continued to decline and properties under foreclosures in the City of Opa-locka
at the beginning of the fiscal year were approximately more than 75. The taxable property value in the
City declined by 15.8% compared to the prior tax year.

The reliance on grant funds has risen due to decreases in other revenue sources. The City is aggressively
applying for grants to supplement city monies to fund services, especially in the area of public safety,
parks and recreation and infrastructure improvement.

National and state economics continue to be key factors in assessing the City’s future fiscal picture.
Changes in the national, state and local economies can affect both revenues and expenditures, due to the
impact on tax receipts, revenue sharing, and the costs of providing city services. The 2011 census,
recently completed, is anticipated to have some impact on revenue sharing for the City.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

The City of Opa-locka’s current focus related to economic growth is the creation of a community
redevelopment agency (CRA) to help promote redevelopment in the City. The City has started this
process by hiring an outside consultant to identify area of community redevelopment and prepare a
Community Redevelopment Plan.

The designs for the major repairs of the City’s four pump stations have been completed and permitted and
construction is ready to commence any time soon. When finished, this project will allow the City to issue
business permits to new businesses whose applications are currently pending.

In compliance with the City’s financial integrity ordinance, the City’s annual budget is adopted with the

provision of $500,000 for contingency reserve. As of September 30, 2011, the City’s unreserved,
undesignated general fund balance was 16% of general fund’s fiscal year 2011 budget. The importance
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of monitoring the City’s fund balance levels has become an integral part of the overall financial planning
of the City.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

It is no doubt that the fiscal year 2011 is another year full of challenges. This year our priorities include
the construction of much needed repairs of 143" Street and Alibaba Avenue, major repairs of four pump
stations, implementation of free citywide bus route and the Ingram Park lakefront project. The most
visible initiative for this fiscal year was the construction of Sherbondy Park Village which includes a
community swimming pool and gymnasium.

To help fund the City’s major initiatives, we worked with the City’s Financial Advisor to refund the
City’s Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 1994, to take advantage of the current low interest rate
and borrowed additional funds by extending the maturity date of the refunding bonds by two years past
the original maturity date of the refunded bonds. On April 28, 2011, this transaction was completed and
resulted in $2.3 million of additional monies to fund the City’s major initiatives.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement of Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010 This was the fifth
consecutive year that the City has earned this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, the City had to publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized CAFR that satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. Wc believe that our current CAFR
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificaic.

In addition, the City also received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for its FY
2011-2012 hudget document. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the
City’s budget document had to be judged proficient as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations
guide, and a communications device.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated service of
the entire staff of the Finance Department and other departments. We wish to express our appreciation to
ail the Departments who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report. We acknowledge the
services of Harvey, Covington and Thomas, LLC, the City’s independent auditors who prepared the
Financial Report the first time this year,

In closing, without the leadership and support of the Mayor, the Vice Mayor, the Commissioners, and the
City Management, the accomplishments and future successes noted in this report would not have been
possible.

Respectiully submitted,

kiel O. Orji, CPA! PhD.
Asst. City Managet/Finance Director
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" HARVEY, COVINGTON & THOMAS,UC
Certified Public Accountants & Consultants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Commission
City of Opa Locka, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Opa Locka, Florida (the
City), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial
staternents as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of City’s
management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptrolter General of the United Statcs. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinions,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City, as of September 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position,
and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 25, 2012, on our
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information on pages 3 through 11 and 40 through 44 be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Statcs of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedutes do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, combining fund financial
statements, schedules, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
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required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the
financial statements. The combining fund financial statements, schedules and the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The
introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Hollywood, Florida
May 25,2012




CI1Y OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Opa-locka, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2011. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction
with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on
pages i-iii of this report,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$23,723,978 million (net assets). Of this amount, $5.5 million (unrestricted net assets) may be
used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

¢ The City’s total net assets increased by $ .459 million.

» The City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $ 2.517 million, an
increase of § 3.415 million in comparison with the prior year.

s At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned, undesignated fund balance for the general fund
was $2.048 million.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This management’s discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic
financial statements. The City’s basic financial statements comprise of three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the City’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating,

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year, All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in the statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
(for example, uncollected taxes, and earned, but unused vacation leave).

Both the statement of net assets and the statement of activities of the government-wide financial
statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to



CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

recover all or a significant portion of their cost through user fees and charges (business-type
activities}). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, roads
and streets, culture and recreation. The business-type activities of the City include water and sewer,
solid waste, and storim water operations.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12-13 of this report.
Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be
divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-ferm
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available
at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate the
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City maintains thirteen (13) individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately
in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund, peoples transportation, capital
improvement debt service fund and the safe neighborhood capital projects fund which are considered
to be major funds, Data from the other nine (9) governmental funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds are
provided in the form of combining statements ¢lsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for the general fund. A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 14-17

Proprietary funds., The City maintains one type of proprictary fund. Enterprise funds are used to
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements, The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer, storm water and solid

waste operations.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements,
only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

water and sewer, storm water and solid waste operations. Water and sewer is the major enterprise
fund of the City.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 18-20 of this report.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential for a full
understanding of the information provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 21-39 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $23.684 million at the close of the most
recent fiscal year. This was an increase of approximately 1.80% compared to last year’s net assets of
$23.265 million.

By far the largest portion of the City’s net assets (63.80 %) reflects its investment in capital assets
{(e.g., land, buildings and building improvements, and equipment), less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to
its citizens; consequently these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

City of Opa-locka's Net Assets - Government-wide

Govemmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Current and other assets $ 4547320 $ 7074363 $ 10429129 $ 9,789,163 $ 14,976,449 $ 16,863,526
Capital assets, net 16,212,546 12,235,097 g 11,647,475 11,182,484 g 27,860,021 i 23,417,581
Total assets 20,759,866 19.309.460 __ 22.076.604 20,971.647 _ 42.836.470 g 40.281.107
Long-term liabilities 8.879,285 7,299,669 5,165,746 5,822.989 14,045,031 13,122,658
Other liabilities 2,031,178 1.141.266 3.036.282 2,752,659 5.067.460 3.893.925
Total liabilities 10,910,463 8,440,935 8,202,028 8.575,648 19,112,491 17,016,583
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 8,402,867 6,412,870 6,733,269 5,719,464 15,136,136 12,132,334
Restricted 2,651,381 3,028,572 411,671 397,355 3,063,052 3,425,927
Unrestricted (1,204,846) 1,427,083 6,729,636 6,279,180 5,524,790 7,706,263

Total nct assets

5 9,849402 5 10,868,525 3 13,874,576 § 12,395,999

$23,723.978 § 23,264,524




CI1TY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

An additional portion of the City’s net assets {13%) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of wnrestricted net assets (23%) may
be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories
of net assets as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. The

same situation held true for the prior fiscal year.

City of Opa-locka’s Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
F L4 Ld L4 L Ld
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Revenues:
Program revenuces:

Charges for services $ 871,234 $ 403878 $ 8634464 $ 8467078 $ 0,505,698 $ 8,870,956

Operating/capital grants and cont. 1,805,571 2,375,022 - - 1,805,571 2,375,022
General revenues:

Property taxes 6,429,836 7,184,822 - - 6,429 836 7.184,822

Other taxes 3,720,486 3,488,504 - - 3,720,486 3,488,504

Intergovernmental, unrestricted 1,606,396 1,678,883 - - 1,606,396 1,678,883

Unrestricted interest earnings 8,761 8,345 22,501 20,890 31,262 29,235

M iscellaneous 198,704 121,567 37,283 71,132 235,987 198,699

Transfers 275,000 - {275,000} - - -

Total revenues 14,915,988 15,261,021 8,419,248 8,565,100 23,335,236 23,826,121

Expenses and transters

General government 5,258,247 4,109,593 - - 5,258,247 4,109,593

Public satety 5,856,372 6,708,963 - - 5,856,372 6,708,963

Highways and streets 3,000,577 3,045,651 . - 3,000,577 3,045,651

Culture and recreation 1,179,470 1,190,536 - - 1,179,470 1,190,536

Human services 278,733 260,737 278,733 260,737

Interest and fiscal charges 361,712 377,528 - - 161,712 377,528

Water and sewer . . 5,446,235 6,244,689 5,446,235 6,244,689

Stormwater - - 1,203,020 1,070,098 1,203,020 1,070,098

Solidwaste - - 291,418 508,494 291,418 508,494

Transters - - - - - -

Total Expenses 15,935,111 15,693,008 6,940,673 7,823,281 22,875,784 23,516,289

Increase (decrease) in net assets (1,019,123} (431,987) 1,478,575 741,819 459,452 309,832
Net assets, beginning as restated 10,868,525 11,300,512 12,396,001 11,654,180 23,264,526 22,954,692
Net assets, ending $ 9849402 § 10,868,525 $ 13,874,576 3 12,395999 § 23,723,978 '$ 23,264,524




CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the City’s net assets by $1.419 million. Key elements of this
decrease are as follows:

¢ Property taxes decreased by $ 754,980 due primarily to the decrease in property taxable value
by 15.8%

e Increase in charges for services by § 467,356.

¢ Total expenses increased by $242,103 due to increase in the general government functions.

e Total increase in the Genera! Government function was due primarily to increase in personnel
costs.

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $1.479 million. Key elements of this
increase are as follows:

* Increase in net assets of the current fiscal year of $1.479 million is § 736,756 higher than last
year. Charges for services increased by $797,262 due to utility rate increase during the fiscal
year.

» For the water and sewer utility, total expenses remained relative the same as last year’s level.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's funding
requirements. In particular, wnassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $2.517 million, a decrease of $3.416 million in comparison with the prior year. Most of
the fund balance is restricted to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has
already been committed to 1) pay debt service (5.326 million), 2) pay capital project costs ($1.845
million), or 3) various other restricted purposes ($.346 million).

General Fund

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the total
fund balance reached $2.249 million.

The fund balance of the City’s general fund decreased by $1.324 million during the current fiscal
year. Key factors in this decrease are as follows:



CI1TY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

¢ Total revenues of the general fund decreased by 12% due to decrease in property taxes and
communication service taxes, which were offset by the increase in utility services taxes and
other revenues. Property taxes decreased by $754,986 due to decrease in taxable property
value by 4.4% from last year. The other revenue sources mentioned above are directly related
to consumer spending and the decrease could be attributed to the current economic condition

of the local and national economy

s Total expenditures of the general fund increased by 8.47% due to increase in expenditures in
the general government function and decrease in capital outlay and public safety. Increase in
the expenditure of the general government function is primarily due to termination and
seftlements payment made by the City in prior year.

Increase Percent
2011 Percent 2010 Percent {Decrease)} ofIncrease
General Fund Revenues Amount of Total Amount of Total From 2009  (Decrease)
Property $ 6,429,836 47% $  7.184,822 57% $ (754,986) -11%
Utility service taxes 1,100,645 8% 870,185 7% 230,460 26%
Communication service taxes 611,700 5% 654,141 5% (42,4413 -6%
Local option, use and fuel taxes 284,901 2% 261,644 2% 23,257 9%
Franchise fees 1,499,291 11% 1,487,057 12% 12,234 %
Local business taxes 223,949 2% 215,477 2% 8,472 4%
Licenses and permits 317,689 2% 188,692 1% 128,997 68%%
Intergovernmental 344,759 3% 561,094 4% (216,335) -39%
Charges for services 75,128 1% 36,795 0% 18,333 104%
Fines and forfeitures 478,417 4% 178,391 1% 300,026 168%
Interest 7,451 0% 7.928 0% (477 -6%
Other revenue 193,204 1% 292,397 2% (99,193) -34%
Transfers 1,998,799 15% 699,359 6% 1,299,440 186%
Total Revenues $ 13,565,769 100% $ 12,637,982 100% 927,787 7%
Expenditures in the general fund are shown in the following schedule:
Increase Percent
2011 Percent 2010 Percent (Decrease) of Increase
General Fund Expenditures Amount of Total Amount of Total From 2008 (Decrease}
(icneral government 4,998 255 32% 4,012,365 34% 985,890 25%
Public safcty 5,665,728 37% 5,774,141 49% {108,413) -2%
Highways and strects 2,307,499 15% 2,200,475 19% 107,024 5%
Culture and rccreation 1,147,780 7% 1,132,959 10%% 14,821 %
Capital cutlay 770,535 5% 391,153 3% 379,382 97%
Debt scrvice - 0% 215,604 2% (215,604) -100%
Total expenditurcs 14,889.797 97% 13,726,697 117% 1,163,100 8%

At the end of the current year, the Safe Neighborhood Capital Projects Fund decreased its fund
balance by $1,420,943. For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, the City spent $3,629,162
towards the construction of Sherbondy Village, presently the biggest capital project of the City.
Sherbondy Village composed of a gymnasium and a swimming pool.



CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The unrestricted net assets of the water and sewer, storm water and solid waste funds at the end of the
current fiscal year amounted to $6.649 million and $ .040 million, respectively. The total increase in
net assets for all enterprise funds was $1.479 million. Other factors concerning the finances of these
funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City’s business-type activities.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

During the year there was a $277,422 increase in the appropriations between the original and final
amended budget. Following are the main components of the increase:

¢ Additional increase in fuel costs;
e $57,000 for recreational programs and activities;
e $161,510 for employee separation cost

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
September 30, 2011 amounts to $15.136 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment
in capital assets includes land, buildings and buildings improvement, machinery and equipment, park
facilities, roads and utility systems. The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for
the current fiscal year was 24%.

Major capital assets additions during the current fiscal year included the following:

e Construction was completed on the Sherbondy Village project.
Bus circulator expenditure.

Segal and Ingram parks improvements.

Construction of pump stations.



CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

City of Opa-locka's Capital Assets
{(net of accumulated depreciation)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
L
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Land $ 3,002,475 § 2,805,291 § 14,762 § 14,762 § 3,057,237 § 2,820,053
Construction in progresss 5,647,455 1,457,971 1,058,327 88,312 6,705,782 1,546,283
Buildings and building improvements 787,370 858,418 - - 787,370 858,418
Utility plant and systems - - 10,870,794 10,904,110 10,870,794 10,904,110
Furniture and equipment 1,587,790 1,433,515 - 175,300 1,587,790 1,608,815
Infrastructure 5,147,456 5,679,902 (296,413) - 4,851,043 5,679,902
L4 L4
Total $16,212,546  § 12,235,097 § 11,647,470 § 11,182,484 § 27,860,016 § 23,417,581
Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 7 on pages 31-32 of this
report.
Long Term Debi
At the end of the current fiscal year the city had total debt outstanding of $12.861 million
Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found on Note 9 on pages 33-36 of this
report.
City of Opa Locka's Outstanding Debt
Governmental Business-type Percentage
Activities Activities Total Change
201 " 200 " 2em " 2000 " 20m 2010 2005-2006
Revenue Bonds $ 7,713,000 $ 5575000 $% - 3 - % 7,713,000 % 5,575,000 38.35%
Capital Leases 96,679 247,227 1,897,743 2,231,801 1,994,422 2,479,028 -19.55%
Loans - - 3,016,463 3,231,219 3,016,463 3,231,219 -6.65%
Liability to FDOT - - 137,140 205,710 137,140 205,710
Total $ 7809679 $ 5822227 % 5051346 $ 5668730 $ 12,861,025 % 11,490,957 0.12

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

In developing the Fiscal Year 2011 budget, the following economic and other factors were

considered:

e The City’s gross property taxable value for operating purposes decreased by 15.8%.
¢ Estimated amounts for consumption driven revenue estimated decline up to 5%

* Special programs funding were reduced.

* Directive from the City Commission to preserve all full-time employees.
s Apggressive applications for grants available for the City under the American Recovery Act.
*  The fiscal year 2012 budget approved millage rate is 9.1526,

10



CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

During fiscal year 2012, the City will be looking at the following programs/initiatives:

Using CRA and other tools to continue redevelopment of the City.
Complete $3.7 million Sherbondy Park improvement project.
Expand our online services.

Complete major upgrade of the eight pump stations.

.« & & @

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City of Opa-locka’s budget for the 2012 fiscal
year.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Opa-locka’s finances for
all those with an interest in its finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this

report or requests for additional information should be addressed to The City of Opa-locka, Finance
Department, 780 Fisherman St., 4" Floor, Opa Locka, Florida 33054.

11
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CITY OF QPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

ASSETS

Cash and equity in pooled cash
Receivables, net

Internal balances

Estimated unbilled services
Inventories

Prepaid items and other assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Customer deposits
Unearned revenue
Due to other governments
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Capital projects
Public safety
Debt covenants
Unrestricted

Total net assets

See notes to basic financial statements.

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
$ 2,101,608 % 7,527,677 § 9,629,285
1,333,815 1,563,285 2,897,100
364,630 {364,630) -
- 301,847 301,847
13,579 4,654 18,233
186,486 - 186,486
547,202 1,396,296 1,943,498
8,689,930 1,073,089 9,763,019
7,522,616 10,574,386 18,097,002
20,759,866 22,076,604 42,836,470
1,904,316 646,011 2,550,327
- 1,690,594 1,690,594
126,862 - 126,862
- 699,677 699,677
698,066 670,439 1,368,505
8,181,219 4,495,307 12,676,526
10,910,463 8,202,028 19,112,491
8,402,867 6,733,269 15,136,136
2,108,420 - 2,108,420
216,747 - 216,747
326,214 411,671 737,885
(1,204,846) 6,729,636 5,524,790
5 9,849,402 % 13,874,576 § 23,723.978

-12-
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ASSETS

Cash and equity in pooled cash

Receivables, net
Due from other funds
Inventories

Prepaid items

Restricted cash and cash equivatents

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Due to other funds
Deferred revenues

Total liabilities

Fund balances:

Nonspendable:
I[nventories
Prepaid items

Restricted for:
Public safety
Transporlation
Debt service
Physical environment

Unassigned:
General fund

Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

CITY OF QPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Other

Peoples Capital Safe Nonmajor Total
General Transportation Improvement Neighborhood Governmental Governmental

Fund Tax Debt Service Capital Projects Funds Funds
3 204,734 % 1,829.910 % - 5 66,964 3 - & 201,608
751,939 11,557 - 483,110 27,209 1,333,815
2,094,855 - 79,850 118,784 516,851 2,810,380
13,579 . - - - 13,579
186,486 . - - - 186,486
- - 409,294 - 137,908 541,202
3 3251593 § 1901467 3% 489,184 % 668858 3 681968 & 6993070
3 623904 § 56,059 3 2,467 § 1,217,990 3 389 § 1904316
272,152 - 160,503 1,219,540 791,957 2,444,752
105,925 - - - 20,937 126,862
1,002,581 56,059 162,970 2437,530 816,750 4,475,930
13,579 - - - - 13,579
186,486 - - - - 186,486
- - - - 216,747 216,747
- 1,845,408 - - - 1,845 408

- - 326,214 - - 326,214
. N - - 263,012 263,012

2,048,947 - - - - 2,048,547
. . - - (614,581) (614,581)
- - - (1,768,672) - (1,768,672}
2245012 1,845,408 326,214 (1,768.,672) (134,822) 2,517,140
$ 0 3251,593 % 1,901,467 § 489,184 § 668,858 % 681968 § 6,993,070

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30,2011

Fund balances - total governmental funds (Page 14)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the
governmental funds.

Governmental capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in
the governmental funds.

Bonds payable
Capital leases
Compensated absences

Net assets of governmental activities (Page 12)

See notes to basic financial statements,
-15-

$ 2,517,140

35,592,697
(19,380,151)

(7,713,000)
(96,679)
(1,070,605)

$ 9,849,402



REVENUES:
Taxes:
Property taxes
Utility taxes
Communications service taxes
Local option, use and fuel taxes
Local business taxes
Franchise fees
Permits and fees
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Interest
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Highways and streets
Culture and recreation
Human services
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Bond issuance cost

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

CITY OF QPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

[ssuance of debt

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uscs)

Net change in [und balances

Fund balances, beginning
Fund balances, ending

Other

Peoples Capital Safe Nonmajor Total
Transportation  Improvement Neighborhood Governmental Governmental

General Tax Debt Service Capital Projcets Funds Funds
3 6429836 & - - % - 5 - % 6,429,836
1,100,645 - - - - 1,100,645
611,700 - - - - 611,700
284,901 - - - - 284,901
223,949 - - - 223,949
1,499,291 - - - - 1,499,291
317,689 - - - - 317,689
344,759 478,162 1,295,753 991,018 302,275 3,411,987
75,128 - - - - 75,128
478,417 - - - - 478417
7.451 - 100 817 393 8,761
193,204 - - - 53,300 198,704
11,566,970 478,162 1,295,853 991,835 308,168 14,640,988
4,998,255 - - 572,546 - 5,570,801
5,665,728 - - - 14,696 5,680,424
2,307,499 126,343 - - - 2,433,842
1,147,780 - - - - 1,147,780
- - - - 271,663 277,663
770,535 - 21,540 4,142,335 - 4,934,410
- - 361,712 - - 361,712
- - 45,417 17,897 - 63314
14,889,797 126,343 428,669 4,732,778 292,359 20,469,546
(3,322,827) 351,819 867,184 (3,740,943 15,809 (5,828,958)
. - 5,393,000 2,320,000 - 7,713,000
. - (5,575,000} - - (5,575,000}
1,998,799 - - - - 1,998,799
- - (723,799) - {1,000,000) (1,723,799)
1,998,799 - (905,799) 2,320,000 (1,000,000) 2,413,000
(1,324,028) 351,819 (38,615) (1,420,943) (984,191} (3,415,9358)
3,573,040 1,493,589 364,829 (347,729) 849,369 5,933,008
b3 2249012 § 1843408 326,214 % (1,768,672} § (134,822) § 2,517,140

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (Page 13) are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 16) $ (3,415,958)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets
is depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Expenditures for capital outlays 4,833,149
Less current depreciation (855,700)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets, Also, governmental funds
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in
the statement activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in
the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Principal payments of bonds payable 5,575,000
Principal payments of capital leases 150,548
Issuance of debt (7,713,000

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental
funds. These activities consist of

Change in compensated absences 406,838
Change in net assets of governmental activities (Page 13) 5 (1,019,123)

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Other
Nonmajor
Walter and Enterprise
Sewer Funds Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and equity in pooled cash $ 7,448,773 $ 78,904 $ 7,527,677
Receivables, net 1,413,951 149,254 1,563,285
Estimated unbilled services 261,513 10,334 301,847
Due from other funds 108,648 941,616 1,050,264
Inventories 4,654 - 4,654
Total current assets 9,267,579 1,180,148 10,447,727
Noncurrent assels:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,396,296 - 1,396,296
Capital assets, net 11,533,000 114,475 11,647,475
Total noncurrent assets 12,929,296 114,475 13,043,771
Total assets 22,196,875 1,294,623 23,491,498
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 558,234 87,7717 646,011
Due to other funds 493,842 921,052 1,414,894
Due to other govemments 699,677 - 699,677
Customer deposits 1,571,114 119,480 1,690,594
Compensated absences 27,787 11,186 38,973
Current portion of loans payable 283,090 - 283,090
Current portion of capital lease payable 348,376 - 348,376
Total current liabilities 3,982,120 1,139,495 5,121,615
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 75,427 - 75,427
Loans payable 2,870,514 - 2,870,514
Capital leasc payable 1,549,366 - 1,549,366
Total noncurrent liabilities 4,495,307 - 4,495,307
Total liabilities 8,477,427 1,139,495 9,616,922
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 6,618,794 114,475 6,733,269
Restricted for debt covenants 411,671 - 411,671
Unrestricted 6,688,983 40,653 6,729,636
Total net assets § 13,719,448 b 155,128 § 13,874,576

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

See notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES [N FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Operating, administrative and maintenance
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Interest income
Interest and fiscal charges

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Income before transfers
Transfers out

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning

Net assets, ending

See notes to basic financial statements.

Business-Type - Enterprise Funds

Water and
Sewer

h 7,256,189
37,283

7,293,472

4,821,708
471,713

5,293.421

2,000,051

22,501
(152,814)
(130,313)

1,869,738

{275,000)

1,594,738
12,124,710
51371948
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Other
Nonmajor

Enterprise
Funds

1,378,275

1,378,275

1,455,996
38,442

1,494,438

(116,163)

(116,163)

(116,163}

271,291

3

155,128

$

Total

8,634,464
37,283

8,671,747

6,277,704
510,155

6,787,859

1,883,888

22,501

(152,814)
(130,313)

1,753,575

{275,000)

1,753,575

12,396,001

$

14,149,576



CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Business-Type - Enterprisc Funds

Other
Nonmajor
Water and Enterprise
Sewer Funds Total
Cash Mlows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers 3 7,954,451 by 1,592,146 3 9,546,597
Cash paid to suppliets (4,547.884) (1,788,090) (6,335,974)
Cash paid to employees (631,015) (58,553) (689.568)
Intemal activity payments from(to) other funds, net (198,164) (198,058} (396,222
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,577,388 (452,555) 2,124,833
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to other funds (275,000) - (2735,000)
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities {275,000} - (275,000)
Cash flows from capifal and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (975,144) - (975,144)
Principal paid on debt (617,384) - {617,384)
Interest paid on debt (152,814) - (152,814)
Net cash used in capital and related
finanging activities (1,745,342) - (1,745,342)
Cash flows lrom investing activities:
Interest income 22,501 - 22,501
Net cash provided by investing activities 22,501 - 22,501
Net increase in cash 579,547 (452,555) 126,992
Cash, beginning 8,305,381 531,459 8,836,840
Cash, ending $ 8,884,928 $ 78,904 $ 8,963,832
Displayed as:
Unrestricted 3 7,448,773 $ 78,904 3 7,527,677
Restricted 1,396,296 - 1,396,296
Total 3 8,845,069 $ 78,904 $ 8,923,973

Reconciliation of operaling income to cash provided

by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ 2,000,051 $ (116,163) $ 1,883,888
Adjustments to reconciled operating income to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expenses 471,713 38,440 510,153
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable (199,922) 22,981 {176,941}
Due from other funds 335,060 {159,397 175,663
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitics 167,435 (100,204) 67,231
Due to other funds {413,340) (138,212) (551,552)
Due to other govemments (61,484) - (61,484)
Customer deposits 277,875 - 277,875
Net cash provided by operating activitics 3 2,577,388 3 (452,555) 3 2,124,833

See notes to basic financial statements.
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NOTE 1.

CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Opa-Locka, Florida (the “City”} in Miami-Dade County, Florida (the “County”) was
incorporated in 1926 by the Laws of Florida Chapter 13187. The City comprises approximately
4.5 square miles of land and operates under a Commission/City Manager form of government and
provides municipal services to its residents, including general government, public safety,
transportation, and parks and recreation. The City also operates water, sewer, storm water, and
sanitation enterprises.

The accounting policies of the City conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. This report, the accounting
systems, and classification of accounts conform to standards of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB), which is the accepled standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant accounting
policies of the City are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The financial statements were prepared in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The
Financial Reporiing Entity, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, which establishes
standards for defining and reporting on the financial reporting entity. The financial reporting
entity consists of the City, organizations for which the City is financially accountable and
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City
are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete.

The City is financially accountable for a component unit if it appoints a voting majority of the
organization’s governing board and it is able to impose its will on that organization or there is
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific
financial burdens, on the City. Based on these criteria, entities were evaluated for inclusion in
the City’s reporting entity with the following results:

The City passed ordinances in prior years establishing various neighborhood improvement
districts. The following neighborhood improvement districts, which are considered to be
component units of the City, have not been included in the financial statements because there
has been no financial activity for several years and the funds have no assets, liabilities, or
fund balances.

1) East-West Neighborhood Improvement District

2) Ali-Baba Neighborhood Improvement District
3) Niles Garden Neighborhood Improvement District
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the City. For the most part, the effect
of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. Govermmental activities,
which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges
for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function. Amounts reported as program revenues include 1)
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use of directly benefit from goods, services,
or privileges provided by a given function, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other
items not included among program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as
separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are
aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measuremen! focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized
as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities
of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within sixty (60) days of the end of the current fiscal period, with the exception of
expenditure driven (reimbursements) grants, for which the availability period is one year.

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-
term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources,
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Property taxes, sales taxes, utility taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with
the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to
be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the general operation fund of the City. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounting for in
another fund.

The Peoples Transportation Tax Fund accounts for the City’s prorated share of the
Charter County Transit System Surtax proceeds used toward projects and programs such
as public transportation operations.

The Capital Improvement Debt Service Fund is used to account for the sinking fund
requirements of the Series 2011 A and B Capital lmprovement Revenue Bonds.

The Safe Neighborhood Capital Projects Fund accounts for revenue and expenditures
of the CDBG and General Obligation Bonds funds from Miami-Dade County.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the
City’s water and sewer systern.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following
subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds,
subject to the same limitation. The City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector
guidance.

As a general rule the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments and other charges
between the City’s water and sewer function and various other functions of the government.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for
the various functions concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the City’s water and sewer, solid waste and stormwater
enterprise funds, are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.
Although these estimates are based on management’s knowledge of current events and
actions it may undertake in the future, they may ultimately differ from actual results.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Fund Equity
1. Encumbrances

Encumbrances accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments
for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to serve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is employed in the General and Capital Projects Funds. Encumbrances
outstanding at the balance sheet date are canceled.

2. Deposits and Investments

The City considers cash on hand, cash with fiscal agents, demand deposits, and certificates of
deposit with and original maturity of (90) ninety days or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows for proprietary fund types fund, all highly liquid
investments (including restricted assets) with maturity of three months or less when
purchased are considered to be cash equivalents.

Investments, consisting of U.S. Government securities, and certificates of deposit with
financial institutions, are stated at cost plus accrued interest.

3. Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and
not yet received. The City calculates its allowance for uncollectible using historical
collection data, specific account analysis, and management’s judgment. Major receivables
balances for the governmental activities include franchise fees and utility taxes, and amounts
due from other governments. Business-type activities report utility billings as major
receivables.

4. Inventories
Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in, and first-out

method. Inventories in the General and Enterprise Funds consist of fuel and expendable
supplies held for consumption. The costs of Governmental Fund type inventories are recorded
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. In the governmental funds,
reported inventories are offset by a fund balance reserve which indicates that they do not
constitute available spendable resources.

5. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets include cash and cash equivalents of the governmental and enterprise funds
that are legally restricted as to their use. Cash and cash equivalents are restricted for debt
service, customers” deposits, revenue bond requirement, and sewer system improvements.

6. Capital Assets

Capital assets, including land, buildings, improvements, infrastructure, and equipment assets,
are reporied in the applicable govemmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an
initial, individual cost of more than $500 and an initial useful life of one year or greater. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extended the life of the asset are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Buildings, improvements, infrastructure and equipment assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and Building Improvements 10-50
Infrastructure Systems 30

Equipment 3-10
Vehicles 3-10

7. Inter-fund Transactions

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements at the end
of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other funds” or “advances to/from other
funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-
type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal
balances”.
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Non-current portions of long-term inter-fund loan receivables are reported as advances within
the governmental funds, and are offset equally by a fund balance reserve account which
indicates that they do not constitute expendable available financial resources, and therefore,
are not available for appropriation.

Transactions among City funds that would be treated as revenues and expenditures or
expenses if they involve organizations external to City government are accounted for as
revenues and expenditures or expenses in the funds involved.

Transactions that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures initially made from it,
which are properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures in the
reimbursing fund and as reductions of expenditures in the reimbursed fund. Transactions,
which constitute the transfer of resources from a fund receiving revenues to a fund through
which the revenues are to be expended, are separately reported in the respective funds’
operating statements.

8. Deferred and Unearned Revenues

Deferred revenues in the governmental funds represent amounts due, which are measurable,
but not available. In the statement of net assets, deferred revenues represent grants and
similar items received; however, the City has not met all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider.

9. Compensated Absences

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate, with certain limits, earned but
unused vacation time and sick leave hours for subsequent use or for payment upon
termination, death or retirement. For government-wide statements and proprietary fund types,
these accumulations are recorded as expenses and liabilities of the appropriate fund in the
fiscal year earned. For governmental fund types, the amount of accumulated unpaid vacation
and sick leave that is payable from available resources is recorded as a liability of the
respective fund only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee retirements
and resignations.

10. Fund Equity
Reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are not appropriated or are legally
segregated for a specific purpose. Restrictions of net assets are limited to outside third-party

restrictions. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are
subject to change.
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NOTE 2.

CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

11. Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital
assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced
by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt excludes
unspent debt proceeds.

Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either
through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed
by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

The City first applied restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

12, Deferred Compensation Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the “Plan”) created in accordance
with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all City employees, allows
them to defer a portion of their salary to future years. The City’s direct involvement in the
Plan is limited to remitting the amounts withheld from employees to the Plan’s administrator.
The deferred compensation plan is not included in the City’s financial statements.

13. Nature and Purpose of Classifications of Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund classifications that comprise
a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on
the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent, Amounts that are
restricted to specific purposes either by a) constraints placed on the use of resources by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or b) imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation are classified as restricted fund
balances. Amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed
by the City Council through an ordinance or resolution are classified as committed fund
balances. Amounts that are constrained by the City's intent to be used for specific purposes but
are neither restricted nor committed are classified as assigned fund balances. Assignments are
made by City management based on Council direction. Non-spendable fund balances include
amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. Unassigned fund balance represents fund
balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not begn restricted, committed,
or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.

DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

The City reported fund balance deficit of ($1,768,672), ($286,179), ($183,931), ($144,471) and
($637,500), for its Safe Neighborhood Capital Project, Opa-locka Police Youth Academy, Crime
Prevention, STOP/VAWA and Solid Waste funds, The City will correct these fund balance
deficits by way of appropriating funds from the general fund in its fiscal year 2011-2012 budget.
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NOTE 3.

NOTE 4.

CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are levied on November 1¥ of each year, at which time taxes become an
enforceable lien on property assessed as of the previous January 1*. Tax bills are payable upon
receipt with discounts rates of one to four percent allowed if paid prior to March 1 of the
following calendar year. Taxes become delinquent on April 1 of the year following the year of
assessment and State law provides for enforcement of collection of property taxes by the sale of
interest-bearing tax certificates and the seizure of personal property to satisfy unpaid property
taxes. Miami-Dade County bills and collects all property taxes for the City, and sells tax
certificates for delinquent taxes.

The gross taxable value of property, as established by the Miami-Dade County Property
Appraiser, at July 1, 2010 upon which the 2010-2011 levy was based, was approximately
$784.617 million. For the year ended September 30, 2011, the millage rate to finance general
government services was 9.1052 ($9.1052 per $1,000 of assessed taxable value). The City is
permitted by the State to levy a maximum of 10.00 mills ($10 per $1,000 of assessed taxable
value) for general government services.

No accrual for the property tax levy becoming due in November 2011 is included in the
accompanying financial statements since the legal right to receive these taxes occurs on
November 1, 2011, and such taxes are collected to finance expenditures of the fiscal year ending
September 30, 2012.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

As of September 30, 2011 the City’s cash are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
and short term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Deposits

All deposits with financial institutions are fully insured or collateralized as required by the
City Commission. The deposits are covered by federal depository insurance and, for the
amount in excess of such federal depository insurance, by the State of Florida’s Public
Deposits Act (“the Act™). Provisions of the Act require that public deposits may only be made
at qualified public depositories. The Act requires each qualified public depository to deposit
with the State Treasurer eligible collateral equal to or in excess of the required collateral as
determined by the provisions of the Act. In the event of a failure by a qualified public
depository, losses, in excess of federal depository insurance and proceeds from the sale of the
securities pledged by the defaulting depository, are assessed against the other qualified public
depositories of the same type as the depository in default.
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NOTES TQ BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Investments
The City is authorized to make direct investments in U.S. government, federal agency, and
instrumentality obligations at a price not to exceed the market price at the time of purchase.
In addition, the City may invest in certificates of financial institutions insured by the United
States government or agencies thereof and repurchase agreements,

As of September 30, 2011 the City has no investments.

NOTE 5. RECEIVABLES

Receivable balances as of September 30, 2011, were as follows:

Due from
Other Allowance for
Accounts Taxes Agencies  Others  uncollectibles Net

Governmental activities:

General b3 - $726,159  $244.374 $589.603 $ (422,493) $1,137.643
Peoples transportation tax - - 71,557 - - 71,557
Safe neighborhood - - 483,110 - - 483,110
Nonmajor funds - - 27,209 - - 27,209
Total governmental activities 8 - $726,159 $826,250 $589,603 $§ (422,493) 51,719,519
Business-type activities:

Water and sewer 51,605,498 3§ - b - $ - $ (191,507) $1,413,991
Stormwater 112,516 - - - (21,555) 90,961
Solidwaste 58,333 - - - - 58,333
Total business-ty pe activities  $1,776,347 § - b - 3 - $ (213,062) $1,563,285
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NOTE 6.

CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires collecting
them to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them or (2) use unrestricted revenues
collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations. These transfers are eliminated in the consolidation, by
column, for the Governmental Activities. I[nter-fund balances result from the time lag between
the dates that (1) inter-fund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur,
(2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system and (3) payments between funds are made.

Interfund balances as of September 30, 2011 consisted of the following:

Due from/to Other Funds Due From Bueto
Other Funds Other Funds

Major governmental fund:

General fund § 2094855 3% 272,752

Capital improvement debt service 79,890 160,503

Safe Neighborheod capital projects 118,784 1,219,540
Nonmajor governmental funds 516,851 791,957
M ajor enterprise fund:

Water and sewer 108,648 493 842
Nonmajor enterprise funds 940,618 921,052
Total § 3859646 3 3,859.646

Interfund transfers for the year ended September 30, 2011, consisted of the following:

Transfer in Transfer out Amount Purpose
General fund  Capital Imp. Debt Service § 723,799 Transfer excess funds
General fund FEMA 1,000,000 Transfer excess funds
General fund  Water and Sewer 275,000 Transfer excess funds

Total $ 1,998,799
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

NOTE 7. CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is 2 summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended September 30, 2011:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 3
Constnuction in progress

Total assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Fumiture and equipment
Infrastructure

Total assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net $

Business-type Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $
Construction in progress

Total assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Infrastructure

Total assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and itmprovements
Furniture and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-ty pe activities capital assets, net $

Balance Balance
06/30/10 Increases Decreases 09/30/11
2,805,291 $ 237,184 % - $ 3,042,475
1,457,971 4,189,484 - 5,647,455
4,263,262 4,426,668 - 8,689,930
3,449,816 - - 3,449,816
4,117,351 406,481 - 4,523,832
18,929,119 - - 18,929,119
26,496,286 400,481 - 26,902,767
(2,591,398) (71,048) - (2,662,446)
(2,683,836) (252,206) - (2,936,042)
{13,249,217) (532,446) - (13,781,663)
(18,524,451) (855,700) - (19,380,i51)
7,971,835 (449,219) - 7,522,616
12,235,097 $3,977,449 $ - $16,212,546
14,762 $ - % - b 14,762
88,312 970,015 - 1,058,327
103,074 970,015 - 1,073,089
19,066,387 5,126 - 19,071,513
2,862,045 - - 2,862,045
21,928,432 5,126 - 21,933,558
(8,162,277) (38,442) - (8,200,719)
{2,686,745) (471,713) - (3,158,458)
(10,849,022 (510,155) - (11,359,177
11,079,410 (505,029) - 10,574,381
11,182,484 $ 464,986 $ - $11,647,470
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the city as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 80257
Public satety 175,948
Transportation 566,735
Human Services 1,070
Parks and recreation 31,690

Total $ 855700

Business-type activities:

Water and sewer § 471,713
Stormwater 38,442
Total $ 510,155

NOTE 8, LEASES
Operating Leases
The City leases building and office facilities under non-cancelable operating leases. Total costs

for such leases were $498,686 for the year ended September 30, 2011. The future minimum [ease
payments for the leases are as follows:

Year Ending September 30 Amount
2012 § 424414
2013 417,662
2014 417,662
2015 417,662
2016 69,610

Total $1,747,010
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Capital Leases

The City has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of various vehicles.
The City also financed the acquisition of water meter reading equipment. These lease agreements
qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present
value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception dates. Future minimum payments
under the lease agreements and the present value of minimum payments as of September 30, 2010 are
as follows:

Governmental Business-type
Year Ending September 30, Activities Activities
2012 $ 09,517 $ 422,978
2013 30,905 422,978
2014 - 422,978
2015 - 422,978
2016 - 422,978
Total minimum lease payments 100,422 2,114,890
L.ess: amount representing interest (3,743) (217,147)
Present value of minimum lease payments  § 96,679 $ 1,807,743
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NOTEY9. LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2011 was as follows:

Balance Balance Due within
09/30/10 Additions  Reductions 09/30/11 One year

Governmental activities:
Capital Improvement Revenue

Bond, Series 1994A $ 5575000 5 - $ (5573,000) % - b -
Capital Improvement Revenue

Bond, Series 2011 - 7,713,000 - 7,713,000 358,000
Total loans payable 5575000 7,713,000  (5,575.000) 7,713,000 358,000
Other liabilities:

Capital leases obligation 247,227 - (150,548) 96,679 67,500

Compensated absences 1,477,442 {407.836) 1,069,606 272,566
Total governmental activities

long-term liabilities $ 7299669 § 7,713,000 $(6133384) § 8879285 % 698,066

Business-type activities:
State Revolving Loan No.

CS120800020 h) 90,950 3 - $ (29446) % 61,504 § 30,391
State Revolving Loan No.

CS12080003P 1,101,071 - {73,668) 1,027,403 75,916
State Revolving Loan No.

W W 800050 2,039,198 - (111,642) 1,927,556 113,488
Total loans payable 3,231,219 - (214,756) 3,016,463 219,795
Other liabilities:

Capital leases obligation 2,231,801 - (334,058) 1,897,743 348,376

Liabifity to Florida Department

of Transportation 205,710 - (68,570) 137,140 63,295

Compensated absences 154,259 - (39,859 114,400 38,973
Total business-type activities

long-tem liabilities $ 582298 §% - $ (657243) § 5,165,746 $ 670,439

For governmental activities, compensated absences are generally liquidated by the General Fund.
Long-Term Debt — Governmental Activities

Long-term debt of the City’s governmental activities, excluding compensated absences and
capital leases, include the Series 1994A Capital Improvement Revenue bonds, bearing annual
interest rates ranging from approximately 5.0% to 6.125%, and are payable from a pledge of
Grantee Entitlement Revenues which must be shared by the State of Florida, in annual principal
installments ranging from $125,000 in 1998 to $570,000 through 2024,

On April 28, 2011, the City refunded its Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bonds Series
1994 (Refunded Bonds) by issuing Capital Improvement Revenue Refunding Bonds Series
2011A (Series 2011A) for $5.393 million and Series 2011B Series 2011B) for $2.320 million.
The proceeds of the Series 2011A bonds were used to retire the Refunded Bonds and to pay for
cost issuance. The proceeds of the Series 2011B bonds will be used to fund capital projects as
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identified in the bond documents and to pay for cost issuance. Interest rates on the Series A and
Series B bonds range from approximately 3.31% to 3.89%, and are payable from a pledge of
Grantee Entitlement Revenues which must be shared by the State of Florida, in annual principal
installments ranging from $63,000 in 2012 to $670,000 through 2026.

Long-Term Debt - Business-Type Activities

Long-term debt of the City’s business-type activities, excluding compensated absences and
capital leases, consists of the following:

a)

b)

c)

d)

State Revolving Loan Note Project No. CS120800020 - for $480,816, bearing interest at rates
ranging from 2.89% to 3.75% due in 20 annual payments of $32,365, including interest, from
July 31, 1994 through July 31, 2013, secured by a lien on Pledge Revenues as defined by the
State Revolving Fund loan agreement.

State Revolving Loan Note Project No. CS12080003P as amended - for $1.827 million,
bearing interest at a rate of 2.56% and 1.54%, due in 40 semi-annual payments of $53,240,
including interest, from June 15, 2003 through December 15, 2022, secured by a lien on
Pledge Revenues as defined by the State Revolving Fund loan agreement.

State Revolving Loan Note Project No, WW800050 - for $2,375 million, bearing interest at a
rate of 1.53%, due in 40 semi-annual payments of $71,143, including interest, secured by a
lien on Pledge Revenues as defined by the State Revolving Fund loan agreement.

Settlement with the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) - for $632,954, bearing an
implied interest rate of 4.11%, due in 119 monthly payments of $5,319, including interest,
from January 2001 through December 2013. In accordance with an agreement between
FDOT and the City, payments were temporarily suspended on August 1, 2002 and
commenced again on Qctober 1, 2005,

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for debt outstanding, other than the capital leases,
are as follows:

Fiscal Year ending Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest

2012 b 358000 § 262647 § 283091 § 61,335
2013 390,000 249968 287,872 56,300
2014 403,000 236,624 208,193 51,143
2015 416,000 222852 201,880 46,886
2016 430,000 208,619 206,240 42,524
2017-2021 2,591,000 795,839 1,100,415 143,412
2022-2026 3,125,000 299,369 698,577 29,947
Therealter - - 167,336 4,817

$ 7713000 § 2275918 § 3,153,604 § 436364
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Summary of Debt Covenants

Series 201 | A and Series 2011B Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds — Debt service is provided
by a pledge of guaranteed state revenue sharing funds, local option gas tax revenues, and the half-
cent sales tax. Reserves must be maintained equal to the maximum bond service requirement. At
September 30, 2011 the City had on deposit with the trustee for these bonds, a reserve account
insurance policy which unconditionally and irrevocably guarantees the full and complete payment
required to be made by or on the behalf of the City.

Pledge Revenues - the City’s agreement under the State of Florida Revolving Loan Fund Program
requires the City to generate Pledged Revenues, as defined by the agreement, from the services
furnished by its water and sewer systems equal to or exceeding 1.15 times the sum of the
semiannual loan payments. As of September 30, 2011 the City is in compliance with this
requirement,

The amount of long-term debt that can be incurred by the City is limited by the charter of the
City. Total general obligation bond of the City outstanding in any one fiscal year can be no
greater than 15% of the assessed value of taxable property as of the beginning of the fiscal year.
As of September 30, 2011 the amount of bonds outstanding and notes payable exclusively from
the revenues of a municipal project was less than 5% of property assessments as of September 30,
2011.

Bonds payable exclusively from the revenue of a municipal project may be issued and
outstanding without regard to the 15% limitation; however, such an issue would be subject to the
limitations imposed by the City’s charter with respect to restrictions on bonds parity with or
Jjunior to the Series 201 1A and Series 201 IB Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds.

NOTE 10. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Florida Retirement Systems Plans - The City participates in the State of Florida Retirement System (the
“System™), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan or defined contribution retirement
plan which covers substantially all of the City’s full-time employees. The FRS was established in 1970,
by consolidating several employee retirement systems. All eligible employees as detined by the State
who were hired after 1970 and those employed prior to 1970 that elect to be enrolled, are covered by
the System.

Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by Chapter 121, Florida Statutes and any
amendments thereto can be made only by an act of the Florida Legislature. Employees of the FRS may
participate in either the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program (the “Investment Plan™), a
defined contribution retirement program or in the defined benefit retirement plan (the “Pension Plan™).
Eligible members of the Investiment Plan are vested after one year of service and are directed to choose
their investment product with a third party administrator selected by the State Board of A dministration.

Employees participating in the Pension Plan have their benefits computed on the basis of age, average
final compensation and service credit. Benefits under the Pension Plan vest after six years of service.
Employees who retire at or after age 62, with ten years of credited service, are entitled to an annual
retirement benefit, payable monthly for life. A post-retirement health insurance subsidy is also provided
to eligible retired employees through the FRS defined benefits retirement plan.
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Summary of Florida Retirement System Contributions,
Covered Payroll and Percentage of Covered Payroll

2011 2010 2009
Covered payroll $8.329,221 $7.881,811 $8,038,470
Contributions 1,074,327 1,084,207 1,079,604
% of Covered Payroll 13.00% 13.75% 13.43%

The City is required to contribute amounts necessary to pay benefits when due as defined by State
Statute. Such contribution requirements ranged between 12% and 22% of gross salaries during fiscal
year 2011. For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2011, 2010, and 2009, the City contributed 100%
of the required contributions. A copy of the System’s annual report can be obtained by writing to the
Division of Retirement, Cedars Executive Center, 2639-C North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida
32399-1560 or by calling (850) 488-5706.

NOTE 11. RELATIONSHIP WITH THE COUNTY

In 1955, the Florida Legislature approved and submitted to a general election a constitutional
amendment designed to give a new form of government to the County of Miami-Dade. The County is,
in effect, a municipality with governmental powers effective upon more than 29 cities, including the
City, and the unincorporated areas. It has not displaced or replaced the cities, but supplements them.
The County can take over particular activities of the City’s operations if (1) the services fall below
minimum standards set by the County Commission, or (2) with the consent of the governing body of the
City.

Since its inception, the County has assumed responsibility for a number of functions, including county-
wide police services, complementing county-wide fire protection; consolidated two-tier court system;
creation of the various surface transportation programs; installation of a central traffic control computer
system; merging all public transportation systems into a county system; and centralization of the
property appraiser and tax collector functions,

NOTE 12, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments

Water Supply and Sewer Services Contract

In February 1985, the City entered into an agreement with Miami-Dade Water and Sewer Authority (the
“Authority”) for the purpose of providing to the City all of its potable water supply and sewer services
for a period of thirty (30) years subject to termination at any time by operation of law or by mutual
consent of the City and the Authority. For the year ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, the City
purchased water and sewer services totaling $2,922.034 and $2,523,667 respectively, from the
Authority under the terms of this agreement.

Solid Waste Collection and Disposal Contract

On March 1, 2010, the City entered into a Residential Solid Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement
(the Agreement) with a third party contractor. The Agreement is for a period of three years terminating
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on September 28, 2013. The contract maybe renewed for additional one (1) year period unless either
the contractor or the City notify the other of its desire not to extend at least sixty (60) days prior to the
termination date of the original contract term or any renewal term.

Contingencies

The City participates in a number of Federal and State grant programs. These programs are subject to
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The possible disallowance of
any item charged to the program or request for the return of already collected funds may be disallowed
by the grantor agency. Any potential disallowed amounts cannot be determined at this time. No
provision for any liability that may result has been made in the financial statements. The City expects
such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Various other claims and lawsuits, which arose in the normal course of operations, are pending against
the City, In the opinion of management, based on the advice of the City’s Attorney, the outcome of
these actions is not anticipated to have a material effect on the financial position and results of
operations of the City.

NOTE 13. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the “Plan™), which is administered by two
administrators. The portion of the plan administered by the International City Management Association
Retirement Corporation (“ICMA”) was created in accordance with Internal Reverniue Code Section 457
(a qualified plan). The other portion constitutes a nonqualified plan benefit and is administered by the
Equitable Life Assurance Society (“Equitable™). The Plan, available to all City employees, permits
them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Participation in this plan is optional. The
deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or
unforeseeable emergency.

All assets and income of the Plan are held in trust for the exclusive benefits of the participants. The
City makes no investment decisions and has no fiduciary responsibilities regarding the Plan; therefore,
the assets and liabilities of the Plan are not included in the City’s financial statements as September 30,
2011.

NOTE 14. RISK MANAGEMENT

The government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the City carries
commercial insurance. The City has not had a significant reduction in insurance coverage from
coverage in the prior year by major categories of risk, and settled claims have not exceeded the City’s
retention and excess coverage in force for each of the past three years.
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NOTE 14. REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Under GASB Statement No. 34, budgetary comparison information is required to be presented for the
general fund and each major special revenue fund with a legally adopted budget. The City adopts
annual operating budgets for the general fund and all special revenue funds. Budget and actual
comparison for the General Fund is presented in the Required Supplementary Information section of the
report. Budget and actual comparisons for other funds are reflected in the Combining Statements
section,

NOTE 15. MANAGEMENT’S REVIEW
In preparing these financial statements, the Organization has e¢valuated ¢vents and transactions for

potential recognition or disclosure through May 25, 2012, the date the financial statements were
available to be issued. There were no significant events that management believe required disclosure.
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Revenues: Original Final Actual (Negative)
Taxes:
Property taxes b 6,559,400 § 6,559,400 $ 6,429,836 § (129,564)
Utility taxes 966,250 910,900 1,100,645 189,745
Communications service taxes 650,000 623,279 611,700 (11,579)
Local option gas tax 277,390 295,897 284,901 {10,996)
Local business taxes 213,000 212,870 223,949 11,079
Franchise fees 1,667,000 1,384,868 1,499,291 114,423
Permits and fees 217,500 228,044 317,689 89,645
[ntergovernmental 585,510 619,478 344,759 (274,719)
Charges for services 21,000 24,845 75,128 50,283
Fines and forfeitures 1,600,000 480,624 478,417 (2,207)
Interest 10,000 8,628 7,451 (1,177)
Other 86,000 162,024 193,204 31,180
Total revenues 12,856,050 11,510,857 11,566,970 56,113
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
City commission 131,965 113,524 121,971 (8,447)
City manager 573,140 734,650 728,109 6,541
City clerk 490,425 469,805 512,215 (42,410)
City attorney 646,000 711,147 796,144 (87,997)
Finance/Utility billing 680,910 659,593 652,488 7,105
[nformation technology 284,705 266,812 274,811 (7,999)
Human resources 337,100 305,136 276,132 26,004
Building licenses 468,465 446,412 473,583 (27,171)
Community development 402,645 392,005 398,439 (6,434)
Total general government 4,015,355 4,099,084 4,239,892 {(140,808)
Public safety:
Police 5,775,908 5,733,463 5,559,204 174,259
Code enforcement 524,665 431,537 442,042 (10,505)
Total public safety 6,300,573 6,165,000 6,001,246 163,754
Public works:
Administration 442,495 538,522 546,697 (11,175)
Street maintenance 745,860 609,025 601,085 7,940
Building maintenance 289,090 335,533 337,128 (1,595)
Vehicle maintenance 515,925 653,116 861,409 (208,293)
Total public works 1,993,370 2,136,196 2,349.319 (213,123)
(Continued)

See notes to budgetary comparison schedule.
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{Continued)

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Parks and recreation:
Parks 1,017,195 1,027,797 1,062,683 (34,886)
Special events 55,000 101,338 116,465 (15,127)
Total parks and recreation 1,072,195 1,129,135 1,179,148 {50,013)
Non-departmental 1,757,405 1,886,905 1,742,492 144,413
Total non-departmental 1,757,405 1,886,905 1,742,492 144,413
Total expenditures 15,138,898 15,416,320 15,512,097 (95,777)
Excess of revenues over expenditures (2,282,848) (3,905,463) (3,945,127} {39,664)
Other financing sources (uses):
Capital lease proceeds 622,300 622,300 622,300 -
Transfers in 1,810,548 2,085,532 1,998,799 (86,733)
Transfers out (150,000} - - -
Net change in fund balance - (1,197,631) (1,324,028) (126,397)
Fund balance, beginning 3,573,040 3,573,040 3,573,040 -
Fund balance, end S 3,573,040 § 2,375,409 § 2,249012 § (126,397)

See notes to budgetary comparison schedule
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Variance
With Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Qriginal Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovemmental 3 450,000 % 450,000 § 478,162 % 28,162
Interest - - - -
Total revenues 450,000 450,000 478.162 28,162
Expenditures:
Current:
Highways and Streets 805,570 805,570 126,343 679,227
Total expenditures 805,570 805,570 126,343 679,227
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures {355,570} (355,570) 351,819 707,389
Other financing sources:
Transfers in 355,570 355,570 - (355,570)
Total other financing sources 355,570 355,570 - {355,570)
Net change in fund balance - - 351,819 351,819

Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, end

1,493,589 1,493,589 1,493,589 -

3 1,493,589 % 1,493,589 3§ 1,845,408 § 351,819

See notes of budgetary comparison schedule.
42



CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

NOTE I. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, requires that all municipalitics prepare, approve, adopt and execute an annual
budget for funds as may be required by law or by sound financial practices and generally accepted accounting
principles. The budgets control the levy and the expenditure of money for City purposes in the ensuing fiscal
year. The budgeting process is based on estimates of revenues and expenditures. The City budgets are
prepared on a modified-accrual basis or accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements,

1.

Prior to August 1, the City Manager submits to the City Commission a proposed operating budget for
the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

Budgetary control is maintained at the departmental and fund level, with finance department
providing support to departments in the administration of their budgets. In accordance with the City’s
budget transfer policy, the City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within any fund
or functions; however, any supplemental appropriations or revisions that amend the total expenditure
of any fund must be approved by the City Commission. The City also maintains an encumbrance
accounting system as one fechnique of accomplishing budgetary control. Encumbrances outstanding
at the balance sheet date are canceled.

Annual operating budgets are legally adopted for the General, Special Revenue, Debt Service, Capital
Projects, and Enterprise Funds. All budgets are on a basis consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The legal level of budgetary control is the
department level, This is the level at which expenditures may not exceed appropriations.

All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The final budget includes supplemental appropriations which have the effect of adjusting the original
budget. General fund supplemental appropriations amount to $168,310 for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2011 which consist primarily of:

$50,000 for additional fuel costs;

$198,280 for personnel costs related to 3% COLA;
$20,000 for recreationa! program and activities;
$133,335 for weed and seed grant expenditures; and
Elimination of the $225,000 interfund transfer-out.

cao o
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES IN EXCESS OF APPROPRIATIONS
For the year ended September 30, 2011 expenditures exceeded appropriations in the city clerk,
city attorney, building and licenses, public works, and parks departments of the general fund by

$42,410, $87,997, $27,171, $213,123 and $50,013. The over expenditures were funded by
available fund balance in the case of the general fund.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for revenues derived from specific sources that are legally
restricted to expenditures for particular purposes.

Police Special Law Enforcement — used to account for the receipt and disbursement of the State’s
special law enforcement trust fund, fines and forfeitures.

Boy Scout — used to account for the proceeds from donations to the City’s Police Explorer Program.

Opa-locka Police Youth Academy (OPYA, formerly DJJ Aftercare Program) — used to account for
revenues received from the Department of Juvenile Justice for conditional release services provided by
the City.

Crime Prevention — used to account for special slate grants to the City to develop a crime program
prevention program,

STOP/VAWA GRANT- used to account for grants from the Department of Children and Families to
provide domestic violence law enforcement services to victims.

FEMA Fund — used to account for grant receipts from the Federal Emergency Management Agency,
through the State of Florida, to fund restoration projects in relation to a declared natural disaster.

Peoples Transportation Tax — used to account for the City’s prorated share of the Charter County
Transit System Surtax proceeds. The monies received can be used toward projects and programs such as
public transportation operations, street lighting, and fransit system enhancements.

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant — (LLEBG) — used to account for grants to the City from the
Department of Justice to reduce crime and improve public safety.

DEP Waste and Water and South Florida Water Management Grant — used to account for grant
money received from the Department of Environmental Protection to assist in the upgrade of the City’s
drainage systems.

Community Redevelopment Agency — used to account for the redevelopment within the City.

DEBT SERVICE FUND

Capital Improvement Debt Service — used to account for the sinking fund requirements of the Series
1994 A Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds.
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Stormwater Solid Waste Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and equity in pooled cash 3 78,904 $ - $ 78,904
Receivables, net 90,961 58,333 149,294
Estimated unbilled services 10,334 - 10,334
Due from other funds 879,187 62,429 941,616
Total current assets 1,059,386 120,762 1,180,148
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net 114,475 - 114,475
Total noncurrent assets 114,475 - 114,475
Total assets 1,173,861 120,762 1,294,623
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,108 86,069 87,777
Due to other funds 368,939 552,113 921,052
Due to other governments - - -
Customers' deposits - 119,480 119,480
Compensated absences 11,186 - 11,186
Total current liabilities 381,233 758,262 1,139,495
Total liabilities 381,233 758,262 1,139,495
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 114,475 - 114,475
Unrestricted 678,153 {637,500) 40,653
Total net assets 3 792,628 $ {637,500) % 155,128
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NONMAIJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Operating, administrative and maintenance
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning

Net assets, ending

Stormwater Solid Waste Total

$ 235423 § 1,142,852 & 1,378,275
235423 1,142,852 1,378,275
252,976 1,203,020 1,455,996
38,442 - 38,442

291,418 1,203,020 1,494,438
(55,995) (60,168) (116,163)
848,623 (577,332) 271,291

3 792,628 § (637,500) § 155,128
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CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers

Cash paid to suppliers

Cash paid to employees

Internal activity payments from{to) other funds, net

Net cash provided by operating activities

Stormwater

Solidwaste

Total

$ 268,668
(316,335)
(58,553)
(346,335)

$ 1323478
(1,471,755)

148,277

$ 1,592,146

(1,788,090)
(58,553)
(198,058)

(452,555)

(452,555)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to other funds - - -

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities - - -

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets - - -
Principal paid on debt - - -
Interest paid on debt - - -

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activitics - - -

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest income - - _

Net cash provided by investing activities - - -

Net increase in cash (452,555) - (452,555)
Cash, beginning 531,459 - 531,459

Cash, ending $ 78,904 $ - $ 78,904

Displayed as:
Unrestricted $ 78,904 b - $ 78,904
Restricted - - -

Total 5 78,904 3 - 3 18,904

Reconciliation of operating income to cash provided

by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) 3 (55,995} $ (60,168) $ (116,163)
Adjustments to reconciled operating income to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation expenses 38,440 - 38,440
{Increase) decrcase in:
Accounts receivable 12,576 10,405 22,981
Due from other funds (162,504) 3,107 (159,397)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (4,807} (93,397) (100,204)
Due to other funds (280,265) 142,053 (138,212)

Due to other governments - - -
Customer deposits - - -
Net cash provided by operating activities $ (452,555) 3 - b {452,355)
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C1TY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Variance
With Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental b 1,383,790 $ 1,383,790 by 1,295,753 hy (88,037)
Interest - - 100 100
Total revenues 1,383,790 1,383,790 1,295,853 {87,937}
Expenditures:
Capital outlay - 22,000 21,540 460
Debt service:
Principal 255,000 5,575,000 5,575,000 -
Interest 342,475 355,153 361,712 (6,559)
Other debt service costs 500 500
Bond issuance cost - 60,322 45,417 14,905
Total expenditures 597,975 6,012,975 6,003,669 8,806
Deficiency of revenues over expenditures 785,815 {4,629,185) (4,707.816) {79,131}
Other financing uses:
Debt proceeds 800,000 7,713,000 5,393,000 2,320,000
Transfers in - 22,000 - 22,000
Transfers out (1,585,815) (3,105,815 {723,799} 2,382,016
Net change in fund balance - - (38,615) 4,644,885
Fund balance, beginning 364,829 364,829 364,829 -
Fund balance, end h 364,829 $ 364,829 5 326,214 b 4,644,885
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Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Interest

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources:
Issuance of debt
Transfers in

Total other financing sources

Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning

Fund balance, end

CITY OF OPA-LOCKA, FLORIDA
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Variance
With Final
Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
5 3,982955 % 4,632955 § 991,018 § (3,641,937)
_ - 817 817
3,982,955 4,632,955 991,835 (3,641,120)
- - 572,546 (572,546)
5,243,525 6,952,955 4,142,335 2,810,620
- - 17,897 (17,897)
5,243,525 6,952,955 4,732,778 2,220,177
(1,260,570} (2,320,000) (3,740,943) (1,420,943)
- 2,320,000 2,320,000 -
1,260,570 - - -
1,260,570 2,320,000 2,320,000 -
- - (1,420,943} (1,420,943)
- - (347,729) (347,729)
% - % - (1,768,672) 3  (1,768,672)
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III. STATISTICAL SECTION




STATISTICAL SECTION
This part of the City of Opa-locka’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and
required supplementary information says about the City’s overall financial health,
Contents

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the readers understands how the City’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenune Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the readers assess the City's most significant local revenue
source, the property lax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help readers assess the affordability of the City's current levels of
outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators that help the reader understand the
environment within which the City’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the readers understand how information
in the City’s financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs,

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented Statement 34 in the fiscal year 2003;
schedules presenting government-wide information include information beginning in that year.
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